
1 

 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

MONDAY, MARCH 5, 2012 – 6:30PM 

CITY HALL BUILDING, COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Council President Krause calls the meeting to order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Roll Call 

4. Approval of Minutes from February 6, 2012 Committee of the Whole Meeting as distributed. 

5. Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), except for public hearing items. 
Comments will be limited to 5 minutes. Be further advised that matters brought up at this time may 
be referred to the appropriate committee or individual for further discussion and consideration. 

6. Update on implementation of the new parking kiosk system 

7. Updates on Assembly Bill 563 (regarding local room tax) and Senate Bill 276 (regarding municipal 
quotas for retail liquor licenses) 

8. Discussion/recommendation on paperless Council packets 

9. Discussion/recommendation on valet service for the Riviera 

10. Discussion/recommendation on improving beach testing 

11. STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS.  The following Aldermen will be given the opportunity to make 

announcements or reports at the meeting in regards to committee activities they have been involved in since the last 
meeting on behalf of the City, future activities and citizen contacts.  It is not contemplated that these matters will be 
discussed or acted on but referrals to the appropriate committees and/or individuals will be made. 

a. Finance, License & Regulation Committee, Alderman Krause 

b. Personnel Committee, Alderman Hartz 

c. Public Works Committee, Alderman Mott  

d. Piers, Harbors, & Lakefront Committee, Alderman Marsala 

City of Lake Geneva 
626 Geneva Street 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
(262) 248-3673 
www.cityoflakegeneva.com 

AMENDED 3/2/12 
Added Items #9 and #10 



2 

 

12. COMMITTEE, COMMISSION AND BOARD REPORTS.  The following committee representatives will be given 

the opportunity to make announcements or reports at the meeting in regards to committee activities they have been 
involved in since the last meeting on behalf of the City, future activities and citizen contacts.  These matters will be 
required to be placed on the agenda to comply with Wis. Stats. 

a. Utility Commission, Aldermen Marsala & Hartz 

b. Tree Board, Alderman Mott 

c. Police & Fire Commission, Alderman Krause 

d. Planning Commission, Alderman Hartz 

e. Board of Park Commissioners, Alderman Kupsik 

f. Library Board, Alderman Krause 

g. Historic Preservation, Alderman Kehoe 

h. Cemetery, Alderman Krohn 

i. Parking Commission, Alderman Marsala 

j. Communications Committee, Alderman O’Neill 

k. Avian Committee, Alderman Marsala 

13. COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES SERVING ON OTHER BOARDS AND COMMITTEES. The following 

committee representatives will be given the opportunity to make announcements or reports at the meeting in regards to 
committee activities they have been involved in since the last meeting on behalf of the City, future activities and citizen 
contacts.  These matters will be required to be placed on the agenda to comply with Wis. Stats. 

a. Chamber of Commerce, Alderman Krause 

b. Geneva Lake Museum, Alderman Mott 

c. Lake Geneva Economic Development Corporation, Aldermen Hartz & Kupsik 

d. Geneva Lake Environmental Agency, Alderman O’Neill 

14. Adjourn 

 

This is a meeting of the Committee of the Whole. 
No official Council action will be taken; however, a quorum of the Council will be present. 

 
3/2/12  8:40AM 
cc: Aldermen, Mayor, Administrator, Attorney, Department Heads, Media 



2.6.12_Committee_Whole_Minutes 
 

1

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2012 - 6:30PM 
CITY HALL BUILDING, COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

Council President Krause called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance led by Alderman O’Neill.  
 
Roll Call.  Present: Aldermen Krause, Hartz, Mott, Marsala, Kehoe, Kupsik, Krohn and O’Neill. Also present: 
City Clerk Hawes.   
 
Marsala/Kupsik motion for approval of Minutes from January 3, 2012 Committee of the Whole Meeting as 
distributed. Unanimously carried. 
 
Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), except for public hearing items.  
 
Ken Etten, 1109 Wisconsin Street, Lake Geneva addressed the Committee on behalf of the Friends of the Geneva 
Theater, a non-profit organization seeking to renovate the Geneva Theater located at 244 Broad Street. Mr. Etten 
said the organization is in the process of seeking funding to acquire the building. He said that members of the 
board recently met with representatives from the Walworth County Economic Development Alliance and UW-
Whitewater. The board was given a list of grant opportunities to review. He said the Friends of Geneva Theater 
will be meeting tomorrow night. All meetings are open to the public and the public is welcome to attend. They are 
looking for people interested in helping saving the theater. Mr. Etten said the renovated theater would be used for 
a variety of purposes, including theater productions, art exhibitions, art classes, recitals, and rehearsal space. He 
said the Friends of Geneva Theater could be found online at www.friendsofgenevatheater.org. 
 
Mr. Etten also addressed the Committee as Chairman of the Historic Preservation Commission. He said a new 
sign has been built to mark where the old railroad depot used to be (in the general area of North Street and Broad 
Street). The sign will be erected in the Spring. Mr. Etten said the Commission is also exploring a railroad heritage 
trail which would highlight several of the key points where the rail line and railroad station used to be near Sage 
Street. He stated the next Historic Preservation Commission meeting will be Thursday, February 9th at 6:30 p.m. 
in the second floor City Hall meeting room. 
 
George Hennerly addressed the Committee as Executive Director of the Geneva Lakes Area Chamber of 
Commerce, 201 Wrigley Drive, Lake Geneva. Mr. Hennerly thanked everyone affiliated with the City for their 
participation in the Winterfest event last week. He said the event received strong publicity and media coverage 
over the Midwest. He announced the winners of the sculpture competition. Mr. Hennerly indicated that travel 
guides for 2012 are now available.  
 
Bob Flemming, 317 Walworth Street, spoke on behalf of the Cemetery Commission in regard to the funding 
request for a new cemetery truck. He said the cemetery is looking to replace its 1995 truck which recently had a 
steering column failure. 
 
Update on sale of Street Department items. 
City Clerk Hawes read a list of equipment that were recently sold by the Street Department for a total of $23,171. 
Mayor Connors noted that the Council approved disposal of the items back in August 2011. He said it is a 
testament to the Street Department for the job they did maintaining the equipment over the years. He indicated the 
high bidders paid the listing fees for the auctions. Alderman Krohn asked if the revenue will be returned to the 
general fund. Alderman Krause confirmed that it would be. Alderman Kehoe asked if the funds were accumulated 
in 2011 or 2012. Alderman Krause said the sale of the items was completed in January and the revenue would be 
applied to the 2012 fund. Alderman Hartz asked if the Street Department was able to sell all of its old equipment 
and if any unneeded equipment had not been sold. Alderman Marsala asked how long the items were posted 
before they were sold. Alderman Krause said that someone from the Street Department would have to follow-up 
on these questions. 
 
Discussion/recommendation on purchase of cemetery truck. 



2.6.12_Committee_Whole_Minutes 
 

2

Alderman Krause noted this item was forwarded to the Committee of the Whole from the Council to discuss the 
condition of the cemetery’s current trucks. Marsala/Krohn motion to suspend the rules and allow Bob Flemming, 
Acting Secretary of the Cemetery Commission, and Lance Melancon, an employee for the cemetery, to address 
the Committee. Unanimously carried. Mr. Melancon indicated the cemetery has two trucks – a 1995 Ford F350 
and a 2007 Chevrolet 3500. He said the cemetery is looking to replace the 1995 truck because it is in poor 
condition. The steering column is wearing out and the truck automatically shifts out of park. Alderman Krause 
asked about the condition of the 2007 truck. Mr. Melancon said the 2007 truck is fine. Alderman Krause asked 
about the need for two trucks. Mr. Melancon said one uses a sander box for melting ice/snow and the other truck 
uses a leaf box. Alderman Hartz asked whether the sander box could be used by the truck in the winter and then 
the leaf box could be used by the same truck during the summer/fall. Mr. Melancon said the leaf box and sander 
box are used at different times throughout the year. Alderman Hartz asked in what instances two trucks were 
needed. Mr. Melancon said two trucks are needed when there are two funerals occurring at the same time. 
Alderman Krause asked how often there are multiple funerals at once. Mr. Melancon said it doesn’t happen often. 
Alderman Marsala asked how many miles are on the 1995 truck. Mr. Melancon said there is 30,000 miles on the 
1995 truck. Alderman Kehoe and Mr. Melancon discussed how the trucks are used to transport tractors from Oak 
Hill Cemetery to Pioneer Cemetery. Alderman Kehoe asked if the City could not afford a new truck what would 
be done with the 1995 truck. Mr. Melancon said they would have to keep the 1995 truck and use it.  
 
Alderman Krause asked whether two plow trucks are necessary for the cemetery. Mr. Melancon said they have 
had two plow trucks for quite a while. He said they need two trucks, but not necessarily two plows. Mr. Flemming 
said that having two plows helps because there are a lot of roads in the cemetery. Alderman O’Neill asked what 
they would do if they only had one truck and it broke down. Mr. Flemming said if the truck went down they 
would have to borrow one from the Street Department. Mr. Flemming noted that the trucks are important to 
speeding up the operations of the cemetery; when they dig the graves, the dirt goes into the back of the truck and 
then gets dumped from the truck into the grave. Alderman Kupsik asked if the cemetery’s trucks are available to 
the Street Department if they were needed. Mr. Flemming said they are available if the City needs them. 
Alderman Krohn asked how long it would take to plow the cemetery if they only had one plow. Mr. Melancon 
said it would take most of the day.  
 
Discussion/recommendation on sign standards for holders of Street Use Permit. 
City Clerk Hawes said the Council continued the second reading of Ordinance 12-03 which would allow street use 
permit holders to use signage in the right-of-way. He said the Council wanted to discuss what type of standards 
should be enforced with this signage. Mr. Hawes referenced zoning code 98-807(3) “Temporary Signs” as a 
possible starting point for the discussion. Alderman Krause said 32 square feet seemed too large for this type of 
signage. He suggested the Committee determine a smaller size limit that would be acceptable. Alderman O’Neill 
said he preferred the sign size be specified as part of the street use permit application and then the Council could 
decide whether to approve or not approve it. Alderman Hartz said 98-807(3) relates to advertising an event, like a 
garage sale, and does not believe it applies to this situation. He referenced Sec. 98-804 which states that no 
persons should park a vehicle in the right-of-way which has attached a sign or advertising with the purpose of 
advertising products. He said this provision prohibits the type of activity that is being discussed. Alderman Hartz 
said there are 115 registered non-profit groups in the city. He suggested this would open the door to all these other 
groups to apply for this sort of thing. He said he is not opposed to charitable organizations but it’s a matter of what 
type of City we are and the type of business climate we want to run. Alderman O’Neill suggested the sign code is 
in violation of state laws as it pertains to political signage. He said the state statutes allow signage to be erected at 
the beginning of an election cycle. However, the local ordinances only allow signage within 30 days of the 
election. Alderman Kehoe said the signage that has been used for the Genoa City Lions Club motorcycle raffle has 
been distracting because it is close to the corner, near the traffic signals. She cautioned the Council about playing 
favorites with particular groups or applicants when it considers changes to the sign code. Alderman Marsala stated 
it isn’t a matter of making an exception for a particular group but deciding how to deal with this particular 
situation that has come up. Alderman Krause said it boils down to the purpose of the ordinance and that it 
shouldn’t have taken 19 years for the Council to realize the motorcycle raffle was in violation of the ordinance. 
Alderman Krohn suggested that the Genoa City Lions Club be grandfathered in to allow the signage. Alderman 
Kupsik said the City has clear sign codes about what type of signage is and is not allowed. He suggested the codes 
need to be followed when these type of issues come up. He did not believe the code should be changed for this 
one situation. Alderman Mott said he believes the Committee is making a mountain of a mole hill and doesn’t 
have a problem with the signage being by the Genoa City Lions Club. Alderman Krause suggested that the 
Builder Inspector be asked for a recommendation on the sign standards. 



2.6.12_Committee_Whole_Minutes 
 

3

 
Update on election and redistricting communications. 
City Clerk Hawes said he wanted to update the Committee on the plan for communicating ward boundary changes 
to residents. He is planning to send postcards to the residents who have changed wards, informing them of their 
new aldermanic district and their polling location. Mr. Hawes said the postcards are being planned to go out in the 
middle of March, which is close enough to the April 3 election that the information will be fresh in residents’ 
minds. Alderman Kehoe asked how people running for office are supposed to campaign when their constituents 
do not know what ward they live in. Alderman Krohn said the City Clerk has issued maps that identify the ward 
boundaries. Alderman Krause suggested the new maps be published in the newspaper and on the public access 
television station. Alderman Hartz asked how absentee voters will know which district they are voting in. City 
Clerk Hawes indicated that absentee voters will receive the ballot that is specific to the ward they reside in. He 
said a vast majority of residents did not change wards, but agreed that multiple resources should be used to 
communicate this information as the election approaches. 
 
Finance, License & Regulation Committee, Alderman Krause 
Alderman Krause said Comptroller Pollitt is working on carry-forwards which the Council should be reviewing at 
the second meeting in February. He said the Comptroller is working toward the goal of presenting a once-a-month 
snapshot of the City’s overall finances.  
 
Alderman Krause said he was asked about the status of the idea to change alderman terms from two year terms to 
three year terms. He said this topic was discussed at a prior Committee of the Whole and was met with mixed 
feelings. Mr. Krause indicated that state statutes provide that Council members serve a two or four year term, but 
the local ordinances could provide for three year terms. He said changing the ordinance would require a charter 
ordinance with a super-majority vote. Alderman Kupsik suggested it is something the Council continues to pursue 
as it would add more stability to the Council. Alderman Marsala said he is in favor of extending terms but not 
longer than three year terms. Alderman Krause said he supported the idea because there is a tremendous learning 
curve involved with becoming an efficient alderman. He suggested that consistency would better serve the City. 
He also said City staff would support the longer terms because it would help with achieving longer term projects 
and objectives. Alderman Krohn said she opposed the idea. She suggested if it took an alderman the length of their 
term to learn the position and if they wished to continue to be an alderman then they should simply run for re-
election. Alderman O’Neill suggested it is not a good time to change this ordinance when three aldermen are on 
their way out of office. 
 
Alderman Hartz suggested that the City explore whether businesses licenses can be held or revoked from 
businesses that are not current with their personal property tax payments. Alderman Krohn indicated that some 
businesses that didn’t pay their personal property taxes in the past had these taxes written off, which wasn’t fair. 
Alderman Krause indicated that he spoke to the City Treasurer and Comptroller and they said tax collection has 
gone well. 
 
Personnel Committee, Alderman Hartz 
Alderman Hartz said the Personnel Committee will be meeting in closed session at its next meeting to conclude 
the personnel performance evaluations. He said the Committee has been meeting with department heads to discuss 
the evaluations and the Committee has gotten good insight on current challenges and opportunities. 
 
Public Works Committee, Alderman Mott 
Alderman Mott provided a summary of the last Public Works Committee meeting. He said that the Main Street 
traffic signals and sidewalk saw cutting proposal are a couple items that will be considered at the next Council 
meeting. He said the next committee meeting is scheduled for February 16 at 6 p.m. 
 
Alderman Kehoe asked whether lighting was going to be installed on Edwards Blvd. Mayor Connors said the 
Council voted to fund the lighting with TID funds. He said DPW Winkler is working with the power company to 
coordinate the installation. Alderman Krause asked about the snow removal operations and suggested that the 24-
hour period that residents have to shovel walks may need to be clarified better. Alderman Mott said a lot of issues 
were hammered out at the special meeting last week between staff and some business owners. Alderman Kehoe 
proposed that more common sense be applied when the City enforces sidewalk clearing rules, as there are some 
properties that do not have connecting sidewalks. Mayor Connors suggested that the snow removal operations are 
discussed again at the February 16 Public Works Committee meeting. 



2.6.12_Committee_Whole_Minutes 
 

4

 
Piers, Harbors, & Lakefront Committee, Alderman Marsala 
Alderman Marsala said the next meeting is scheduled for Thursday, February 23 at 5 p.m. He said the meeting 
may be changed to 5:30 p.m. to avoid conflict with the Utility Commission meeting. He asked that aldermen 
notify him of any issues that should be discussed at this meeting. 
 
Utility Commission, Aldermen Marsala and Hartz 
Alderman Hartz said the Utility Commission reviewed and approved a 2012-2016 Capital Improvement Program 
at its last meeting. He said the commission also addressed the issue of employee compensation.  
  
Tree Board, Alderman Mott 
No meeting, no report. 
 
Police & Fire Commission, Alderman Krause 
Alderman Hartz said the last meeting was primarily held to approve the bills. He said the Fire Chief and one of the 
members of the Police and Fire Commission are working to revise the City’s fire code to make it more in line with 
the State’s code. He said the City’s current code is much more restrictive than the State’s. 
 
Planning Commission, Alderman Hartz 
Alderman Hartz noted the Plan Commission reviewed four sign applications at its last meeting. Alderman Kehoe 
asked if there was a public hearing on the Anchor church project. Alderman Hartz said a date has not been set yet 
for a public hearing for that project.  
 
Board of Park Commissioners, Alderman Kupsik 
Alderman Kupsik said there was continued discussion with the skateboard park update at the last meeting. He said 
a DVD was distributed to the commissioners regarding a proposed railroad heritage trail concept. The Board will 
be discussing this item more closely at its meeting in March. 
 
Library Board, Alderman Krause 
Alderman Krause said the Library is working on a final version of an updated employee handbook. He also said 
the Library has been very thorough with its finances. He noted that the Library is seeing the pay-off from the high 
efficiency furnaces that were installed. 
 
Historic Preservation, Alderman Kehoe 
Alderman Kehoe said she will invite members from the Friends of Geneva Theater to the next Committee of the 
Whole meeting to give an update with where they are at in their efforts.  
  
Cemetery, Alderman Krohn 
No meeting, no report. 
 
Parking Commission, Alderman Marsala 
Alderman Marsala said the Parking Commission elected Martin Smith as its new chairman. He said Mr. Smith is 
very organized and has a sincere and true interest in the parking issues in the City. Alderman Marsala said that the 
parking shuttle was popular during the Winterfest activities. He noted there is a new State law prohibiting scooters 
from parking on the sidewalk which will be something that the Parking Commission may need to address. He said 
the Parking Commission discussed adding four metered parking spaces at Wisconsin Street and Dodge Street. 
Alderman Marsala said the next meeting is scheduled for February 21 at 6 p.m. 
 
Alderman Kehoe asked about the status of the parking lot behind Egg Harbor. Mayor Connors said Administrator 
Jordan sent an agreement to the property owner proposing the revenue structure remain unchanged. Alderman 
O’Neill suggested there may be additional parking spots available on Center Street between Wisconsin and Dodge 
Streets. Mayor Connors said the Parking Commission decided to revisit the possible addition of these parking 
stalls in 2013 after the new parking meters are installed. Alderman O’Neill asked if people will be able to pay for 
less than an hour’s worth of time at the new parking kiosks. Alderman Marsala said this is a possibility that will be 
discussed. 
 
Communications Committee, Alderman O’Neill 



2.6.12_Committee_Whole_Minutes 
 

5

Alderman O’Neill said the committee discussed the addition of a City Facebook and Twitter page. He said City 
Clerk Hawes has created the pages and they are now online. Alderman O’Neill said staff is working on a 
disclaimer to public on the City website and social media pages. He said the next meeting is scheduled for March 
21 at 7 p.m. 
 
Alderman Kehoe asked for more information about the Facebook page. She expressed opposition for using social 
media, suggesting that public officials could get into trouble using Facebook. City Clerk Hawes explained the 
social media would be used as an extension of the City’s website and as a tool to provide information to the 
public. He said that only a City page would be created, not personal pages for aldermen or staff. Mayor Connors 
said the social media pages would be used as a one-way communication tool and user comments would be limited 
to the extent that we are able to. City Clerk Hawes brought up the City’s Facebook page on the monitors and gave 
a brief tour of the page. 
 
Avian Committee, Alderman Marsala 
No meeting, no report.    
 
Chamber of Commerce, Alderman Krause 
Alderman Krause said Winterfest was a success despite the warm weather. Mayor Connors commended the 
Chamber of Commerce for their work on Winterfest and Grace Ecklund for her efforts coordinating the sponsors. 
Alderman O’Neill suggested that spotlights be used during Winterfest at night because it gets pretty dark and 
difficult to see the sculptures. 
 
Lake Geneva Museum, Alderman Mott 
Alderman Mott said that Kathy Klaisner, Executive Director for the Lake Geneva Museum, has put in her 
resignation. A replacement has not been selected at this time. Alderman Mott provided a summary of the items on 
the Lake Geneva Museum Board agenda. He said that he will give the City Clerk copies of information about the 
museum’s grand re-opening celebration. 
 
Lake Geneva Economic Development Corporation, Aldermen Hartz & Kupsik  
Alderman Kupsik said that the Lake Geneva Economic Development Corporation interviewed two real estate 
companies that were interested in real estate properties. Alderman Hartz added that the Lake Geneva Economic 
Development Corporate has been increasingly active with promoting business and bringing new business to the 
City. 
 
Geneva Lake Environmental Agency, Alderman O’Neill 
Alderman O’Neill said that the Geneva Lake Environmental Agency resolved a discrepancy in its book keeping 
reports. The other main item discussed was a partnership with Aurora for the “AuroraFest” being planned for the 
second week in May. 
 
Kupsik/Marsala motion to adjourn at 9:02 pm.  Unanimously carried. 
 
 
__________________________________ 
/s/ Michael D. Hawes, City Clerk 
 

THESE ARE NOT OFFICIAL MINUTES UNTIL APPROVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
 



February 2012 

on 

626 GENEVA STREET 
LAKE WISCONSIN 53147 
(262) 248-3673' Fax (262) 248-4715 

www.cityoflakegeneva.com 

Honorable Dean I(aufertp Chair 

Assembly Bill 563 - Changes to Local Room Tax 

Dear Chairman Kaufert and Members ofthe Committee on Tourism, Recreation and State 
Properties, 

Many cities collect a room tax, but many of them are completely different from one another. 
Lake Geneva is a city that is first and foremost a tourist attraction. The lake is a tourist magnet. 
The City and local merchants have spent millions of dollars in the past 15 years to make the 
community an added attraction to the lake. The City has utilized capital project funds, general 
funds and T1F in the downtown area to eliminate blight, improve traffic flow and make 
significant improvements in infrastructure. Once the City invested in improving the 
infrastructure and improve the traffic flow, the commercial community responded by 
significantly upgrading their properties. That is shown by the increased assessments generated 
in the downtown commercial area. 

As a main tourist attraction, Lake Geneva is affected a great deal differently than other 
communities of the same size and area. The City has a year round population of 7,500. There is 
a summer population of 25,000 to 30,000, and a shoulder season population of 12,000 to 
15,000. The City has to provide many more services than a normal city. As an example, the City 
of Burlington has a population of 10,500 and has 21 full time sworn officers. Elkhorn has a 
population of 10,084 and has 15 sworn police officers. Lake Geneva has a population of 7,500 
and has 22 full time sworn officers and 14 part-time officers. Because aesthetics are primary to 
a tourist city, the City of Lake Geneva sweeps the downtown commercial area at least 4 days a 
week. Street Department personnel pick up garbage from the City parks on Saturdays and 
Sundays in addition to their weekly runs. Last July Fourth weekend, the City crews picked up 
over 7 tons of garbage from containers in the downtown area and City Parks. These services 
are all necessary because of the impact of the tourists to our City. 



After reading the proposed Bilt it is evident that one of the main components of this bill is to 
make those communities that passed a room tax before 1994, to give 70% of the room taxes 
collected to tourism and convention bureaus. Since the City of lake Geneva passed a room tax 
in 1992, it has placed the money in the City's General Fund. The City does make a contribution 
of $95,000 to the Chamber of Commerce annually. The City also provides a lakefront location 
and building for the Chamber at a cost of $1 per year. The Convention and Visitors Bureau is an 
adjunct of the Chamber of Commerce. The City has continually invested general fund monies to 
improve infrastructure and provide amenities for tourists. For 19 years the room tax has been a 
part of the City'S budget. Now, with a Levy Cap in place, it would be very difficult for the City to 
replace the approximately $300,000 this legislation would carve from the City's budget. Is the 
Tourism Bureau or Chamber of Commerce going to pay for police protection, street department 
services or traffic improvements? I think not. If the City was abusing the funds for spurious 
projects, that is one thing. However, the City of Lake Geneva can demonstrate that the funds 
received have been put to use in support of the tourism and lodging industry in the City and 
beyond. 

The consequences of losing room tax revenue will be staff reduction and reduced services. It is 
the City of Lake Geneva's position that tourists visit communities they feel are safe, clean and 
provide necessary services. The City has maintained the same tax rate for the past three years 
and in 2010, lowered its operating budget 1% below 2009's operating budget. The Common 
Council has been very conscious of the taxes local residents pay and would rather raise funds 
from visitors than the local populace. The Room Tax helps to fund the services that the tourists 
expect and need. 

The City of Lake Geneva respectfully requests that the legislation not be punitive to those 
communities that provide services to the tourism industry. 

We strongly urge opposition to AS 563 and any other proposed changes to the law that 
would further erode local control of room tax dollars. 

Thank you for the opportunity to address the Committee and for your consideration of this 
testimony. 

Dennis E. Jordan 
City Administrator 



































 
 
 
 
 

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
MICHAEL HAWES 

626 Geneva Street • Lake Geneva, WI  53147 
(262) 249-4092 • mhawes@cityoflakegeneva.com 

 
 
Date:  March 5, 2012 
 
To:  Mayor and Common Council 
 
Re:  Paperless Council Packets 
 
 
 
The purpose of the attached documents is to inform you of the costs associated 
with producing paper packets for the regular Council meetings and Committee of 
the Whole meetings. 
 

1. The first page identifies the cost of paper, ink, staples and labor involved 
with making copies and assembling the packets. In total, the packets require 
nearly 25,000 sheets of paper per year, at a total cost of approximately 
$2,235 per year. Again, these are the costs associated with making copies 
and assembling the copies only. 
 

2. The second page lists a few “paperless” alternatives. As you can see, the E-
readers (i.e. Amazon Kindle Fire) offer potential savings, depending on the 
number of council members that switched this unit. The Tablet units, like the 
iPad, do not appear to offer any cost savings in a given year. A more 
permanent alternative could be installing computer stations at the council 
members desks; however, some Council members would still need paper 
copies to review packets prior to the meetings. 

 
One suggestion would be to try E-readers on a trial basis once the new aldermen 
come into office in April. We could give each alderman the opportunity to choose 
whether they would like to use an e-reader device (i.e. the Amazon Kindle Fire) or 
to receive paper packets. We would also recommend that the staff members who 
receive the packet would switch to E-readers. I have spoken with the City’s IT 
director Jeff Miskie who has ideas for pre-configuring the E-readers to fit our 
desired use. 



1Each Council packet 135 pages 6Hours per Council meeting 3.00 Sheets of paper 24,504
Total pages per meeting 1904 pages 6Hours per COWM meeting 0.50 Pounds of paper 980.16

1Each COWM packet 23 pages 2Total hrs/month 6.50 Wood Use 2 tons (~13 trees)
Total pages per meeting 276 pages 2Total hrs/year 78.00 Sulfur-dioxide 13 lbs

Greenhouse gases 2,952 lbs
2Total pages/month 4,084 7Cost per hour 23$                   Hazardous Air Pollutants 1 lb
2Total pages/year 49,008 Wastewater 10,889 gal

Solid Waste 942 lbs
4Cost per sheet of paper 0.006$          Cost per month 150$                 
5Copier cost per sheet 0.006$          Labor per year 1,794$             

3Cost per month 37$               
Paper/copier per year 441$             

Total paper, copier, labor cost per year:  = 2,235$        

1 = based on average pages per packet over last six months
2 = based on producing 14 copies of the Council meeting packet twice per month, and producing 12 copies of the C.O.W.M. packet once per month
3 = includes printing double-sided sheets
4 = based on typical cost of $30.00 per box of paper (5,000 sheets)
5 = based on contract cost of $0.0057 per copy (which includes toner, copier equipment and maintenance) and $0.0066 per staple
6 = includes the labor involved with copying and assembling packets only
7 = average of clerk and deputy clerk hourly rates
8 = computed using the calculator on the Environmental Paper Network (environmentalpaper.org)

Paper/Copier Costs Labor Costs 
Copying/Assembling Packets

8Environmental Impact (per year)

The Cost of Paper Packets
The tables below consider the costs of paper, ink, staples, and labor involved with copying and assembling the packets for regular Council meetings 
and Committee of the Whole Meetings (COWM). Regularly, there are two Council meetings and one COWM per month.



- 7" display
- Packets distributed by web or reusable microUSB stick
- Adobe PDF reader, word processing 50% of 75% of 100% of
- Wireless internet connectivity council council council

- "ArticleView" technology for easy readability Savings per year 562$     666$     735$     
- 8gb of storage space
- Cost: $200 each + $50 protective cover

- 7" to 10" display
- Packets distributed by web only
- Wireless internet connectivity 50% of 75% of 100% of

Ad b PDF bilit hi h di / ti bilit il il il

Paperless Alternatives to Council Packets

E-Readers

Tablets

Amazon 
Kindle Fire

Barnes and Noble 
Nook Color

- Adobe PDF capability; high media/computing capability council council council
- 16gb of storage space Savings per year (488)$    (834)$    (1,065)$ 
- Cost - $500 + $50 protective cover (no savings)

- Re-use old City computers at Council Chamber desks

- E-readers and Tablets include assumption of 2-year useful life (length of alderman's term)

- All scenarios for E-readers and Tablets include purchasing 3 units for staff and discontinuing 4 hard copies

- Purchase terminal computing stations Cost - $3,000 for 12 units, plus 4 monitors, plus keyboards/mice, plus 
installation (approx. $6,500 total)

Or

Terminals in Council Chamber

Samsung
Galaxy Tab 10.1

Apple  iPad 2

HP MultiSeat ms60000



 1

 
LAKE GENEVA POLICE AND FIRE COMMISSION 

MEETING AGENDA  
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 2012, AT 7:00 P.M. 

 
 

This meeting will be held in the City Council Chambers, City Hall, 626 Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, Wisconsin, 53147. 
 
1. Call Meeting to order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
4. Comments from the Public reference agenda items only. Comments are limited to a maximum of five  
     minutes  
 
5. Acknowledge Correspondence  
 
6. Approval of minutes from the regular meeting January 4, 2012 
 
7. Larry Knuth from Paratech Ambulance to present an annual service report for 2011 
 
8. Records Retention for Police and Fire Commission Records  
 
9. Fire Department Business:  
    a. Approval of bills for the Month of December 2011. Operating in the amount of $45,520.74,  
        and Capital with a credit of $998.03, for a total expenditure of $44,522.71 
     
    b. Approval of bills for the Month of January 2012. Operating in the amount of $66,710.29,  
        and Capital in the amount of $17,519.63, for a total of $84,229.92 
 
    c. Succession planning 
 
    d. LifeQuest improvement report 
 
    e. Consider 3 year contract for LifeQuest (EMS Billing)  
  
    f.  Accept Resignation of Lindsey Fink from EMS 
 
    g. Accept Resignation of Kathryn Schmitt from POP 
 
    h. Set date and time to conduct interviews for POP and POC 
 
    i. Monthly Activity Report for January 
    
    j. Paratech Monthly Report for January 
 
    k. Items to be forwarded to Council 
 
10. Police Department Business:  
      a. Approval of bills for the Month of December 2011. Operating in the amount of $113,211.29 and Capital in  
         the amount of $2,694.16, for a total of $115,905.45 
 
     



 2

 
     b. Approval of bills for the Month of January 2012. Operating in the amount of $226,422.91 (no capital)       
 
     c. Update on LTE position 
 
     d. Update on hiring process 
 
     e. “SWAT” memo of understanding with Walworth County – continued from January 2012 meeting 
     
     f. Employee Grievance Procedure- continued from the December 2011 meeting 
 
     g. Extend Taser use to Reserve Officer 
 
     h. Correspondence received by Chief  
         Thank you letters from Lisa Kusko, Betzer Funeral Home,  
                
     i. Monthly Activity reports   
 
     j. Items to be forwarded to Council 
 
11. Motion to go into closed session per Wisconsin State Statute 19.85(1)(f), Considering medical information  
       of specific persons which if discussed in public would have a substantial adverse effect upon the reputation  
       of person(s) referred to: specifically Police Department employee(s) and 19.85(1)(c) considering  
       employment, promotion, compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which 
       the governmental body has jurisdiction: specifically; Police Department Personnel and 19.85(1)(d) considering  
       policies for crime detection and prevention for Police Department 
 
12. Motion to return to open session per Wisconsin State Statute 19.85(2) 
 
13. Discussion and action on closed session item(s) if needed 
 
14. Agenda items for the next regular meeting March 8, 2012  
 
15. Adjourn 
 
A quorum of the City Council may be present to gather information; however, no formal Council action will be taken. 



CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2012 - 6:30 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 

Meeting called to order by Alderman Hartz at 6:30pm. 
 

Roll Call: Commissioners Hill, Olson, Flower, Poetzinger and Alderman Hartz. Also Present: City Attorney 
Draper, Building/Zoning Administrator Brugger, City Planner Slavney, City Administrator Jordan and 
Administrative Assistant Special. Mayor Connors, Commissioner Skates and City Planner Slavney were 
excused. 
 

Flower/Poetzinger motion to approve the January 16th 2012 minutes. Motion carried.  
 

Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for 
public hearing items. Comments will be limited to five (5) minutes. Applicants will be allowed when their 
item is discussed.  
None. 
 
Correspondence. 
None. 
 
Continued Public Hearing and recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by Wrigley Drive 
LLC, PO Box 460, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for a commercial indoor lodging facility in the Central Business zoning 
district at 835 Wrigley Drive, Tax Key No. ZOP 00339. Jason Bernard, architect for the project, approached the podium 
and explained the project of remodeling the old book store. They would like to have a tenant before the summer begins. 
Flower asks if the raised patio would need a railing. Brugger states that if it less than 30 inches off the ground, they do not 
need a railing. Poetzinger asks about the current setbacks of the patio. Without a current renter on the first floor, would 
they need to come forward for approval before they rent it out? Brugger states they would not need your approval for the 
tenant unless the use requires a conditional use for that zoning district. Bernard states that they do have a buffer between 
the patio and the property line. Flower/Olson motion to close the public hearing. Motion carried. Hill asks what the 
“neighborhood amenity” specification refers to. Brugger stated it would refer to a place where someone could just sit on a 
bench as they pass by, or if someone is shopping inside and another person with them doesn’t want to be inside, they 
could go outside and sit down. That kind of use would not require a Conditional Use approval. Hill/ Poetzinger motion 
to approve the Conditional Use Application filed by Wrigley Drive LLC, PO Box 460, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for 
a commercial indoor lodging facility in the Central Business zoning district at 835 Wrigley Drive, Tax Key No. 
ZOP 00339 including all staff recommendations including the need to make a determination that the proposed 
setbacks for the patio is “an essential component of the site design”. Motion carried unanimously. 
    
Public Hearing and recommendation on a Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) filed by Ryan Companies US, 
Inc., 111 Shuman Blvd, Suite 400, Naperville, IL 60563, to create two lots in accordance with the approved GDP 
for the property located to the east of the Target Co. property parking lot more precisely identified as Tax Key 
Number ZA3997 00003. (withdrawn by the applicant). 
 
Public Hearing and recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by filed by East Shore Estates 
Property Owners Association C/O Mark Kammermeier (President), 727 La Grange Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 
53147, to amend the existing Conditional Use granted to Fairwyn, Ltd. on behalf of the property owner Antoinette 
Sottrel on November 9, 2010 and August 30, 2011, to reduce the site area of 1084 La Grange by 579 square feet for 
a lot line adjustment to comply with the riparian zone boundary requirements for the pier on the adjoining 
property. The Conditional Use Application amended is for the property located at 1084 La Grange Drive, Tax Key 
Number ZLE 00003. Attorney Jim Howe approached the podium on behalf of the Property Owners Association and 
explained the project. Howe stated that if you look at the plat of survey included with the Conditional Use Application, 
the northern most lot is the lot owned by the Association. It is 50 feet wide and the association pier extends out on this lot. 
This has been there they believe since the 1970’s. Recently, someone has a riparian boundary map drawn and it disclosed 
that a couple of the southernmost slips off the association pier were encroaching on the neighboring property. The current 
owner of the property (that is being encroached upon) has been approached to contract to purchase 30 feet of shorefront to 
eliminate the riparian encroachment. There will be no addition slips, and no more boat will be moored at this location. The 

 



lot from which the land is being reduced will still more than meet the required area for this ER-1 zoned lot. Hill/Flower 
motion to close the public hearing. Motion carried. Poetzinger/ Olson motion to approve the Conditional Use 
Application filed by filed by East Shore Estates Property Owners Association C/O Mark Kammermeier 
(President), 727 La Grange Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to amend the existing Conditional Use granted to 
Fairwyn, Ltd. on behalf of the property owner Antoinette Sottrel on November 9, 2010 and August 30, 2011, to 
reduce the site area of 1084 La Grange by 579 square feet for a lot line adjustment to comply with the riparian 
zone boundary requirements for the pier on the adjoining property. The Conditional Use Application amended is 
for the property located at 1084 La Grange Drive, Tax Key Number ZLE 00003 including all staff 
recommendations. Hartz asks if the signature (by the Property owners association) is legal in order to carry forward with 
this request. Attorney Howe states that as the contract purchaser they are allowed to do this. They also have Ms. Sottrel’s 
signature on file. Motion carried unanimously. Brugger explains that essentially the Conditional Use approval is to 
allow for the lot line adjustment to occur, therefore there is no need to approve the lot line adjustment separately unless 
the Commission wants to.  Flower/Hill motion to approve the lot line adjustment as submitted. Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 
Public Hearing and recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by filed by Michael and Nancy 
McCabe, PO Box 203, Fontana, WI 53125 for the construction of a single family residential home in an ER-1 
District using SR-4 District requirements per Sec. 98-407 at Tax Key Number ZCE 00031 located on Maytag Road. 
Ken Etten, architect for the project, approached the podium on behalf of the property owners and explained the 
project. Hartz asked if there was a landscape plan in the packet. Brugger stated that it is not necessary to have 
one in the ER-1 district nor the SR-4 district. There was some discussion about the trees on the lot. Flower asks 
if there was a grading plan for the lot. Etten explains that there wasn’t one in the packet but there would be 
something provided to the building inspector when the plans are submitted. Flower/Hill motion to close the 
public hearing. Motion carried. Flower/ Poetzinger motion to approve the Conditional Use Application filed 
by filed by Michael and Nancy McCabe, PO Box 203, Fontana, WI 53125 for the construction of a single family 
residential home in an ER-1 District using SR-4 District requirements per Sec. 98-407 at Tax Key Number ZCE 
00031 located on Maytag Road including all staff recommendations. Discussion followed on drainage review for the 
parcel. Flower/Poetzinger friendly amendment to allow for staff review of the drainage and grading plan. Motion 
carried unanimously on amendment to original motion and also on original motion as stated.  
 
Public Hearing and recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by Rick Bittner on behalf of 
Bittner’s Bakery, 259 Sky Lane, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for a light industrial use (bakery) incidental to retail 
sales at 495 Interchange North, Tax Key number ZYUP 00140B. Rick Bittner, 259 Sky Lane, Lake Geneva, 
approached the podium and explained the project. The Conditional Use of this project is the light industrial use for which 
the bakery will provide wholesale goods baked on site. Bittner explains the short term as well as the long range goals for 
the building. They would like to be operating by the end of April. Olson asked about the future outdoor area and wanted 
more of an explanation. Bittner explains there is a small green space there and would like to utilize it, but that would be 
another Conditional Use. There is plenty of parking there. Flower asks about the drive thru. Bittner explains that it was 
left over from a previous plan; he does not envision a drive thru to happen at this location. Hartz asks if the U-haul trucks 
are in this location. Brugger stated that the trucks are located on the other end of the building. Flower asks if a review of 
the exterior would have to come before the Commission. Brugger stated that they don’t have to. Olson/ Flower motion to 
close the public hearing. Motion carried. Hill/ Flower motion to approve the Conditional Use Application filed by 
Rick Bittner on behalf of Bittner’s Bakery, 259 Sky Lane, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for a light industrial use 
(bakery) incidental to retail sales at 495 Interchange North, Tax Key number ZYUP 00140B including staff 
recommendations. Discussion followed. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Public Hearing and recommendation on a Precise Implementation Plan filed by Anchor Covenant Church, PO Box 
351, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to allow for an Indoor Institutional Use (Church) at 630 Williams Street Tax Key 
Numbers ZA1776 00001, ZA1776 00002, ZA1776 00003 and ZA1776 00004. Ned Sutherland, 1132 Wheeler Street, 
Lake Geneva, approached the podium on behalf of the Anchor Covenant Church and explained the project more in detail. 
Sutherland passed around a larger material specimen to show in larger detail. Sutherland did explain that he received 
written documentation today stating that he could utilize additional parking from Dunn Lumber after working hours and 
also on Sundays. Brugger asked if the exterior façade changes to the building and the parking lot/landscaping would all be 
installed prior to opening the use a church. Sutherland stated it would be Phase I. Sutherland would like to occupy a part 
of the building, for church services, prior to the parking lot being finished. They would like to begin church services as 



soon as they can. They would plan to work on the parking lot during the summer time and have the parking lot finished 
before the asphalt plants close next fall. Hill asks if the intention on the exterior is to bring a consistent looking feel across 
all of the buildings. Sutherland said yes and explained the look of the building looking more uniform from a short distance 
away. Hill reiterated that the purchase of the property will include the large building and the muffler shop. Yes. 
Sutherland stated that there are 173 street parking spaces in the blocks around the building. There are actually 12 spaces 
right on Williams Street. Brugger asked what the time frame is with removing the muffler shop. Sutherland explains that it 
is a touchy subject and that they will give the business 60-90 days. Apparently he has been on a 30 notice for removal for 
the past couple years. Sutherland says they would like to get going as quickly as possible but also be as fair as they can 
with the removal of the business that has been operating there. Hill asks how long the property has been for sale. Mr. Tom 
Landgraf, owner of the property currently residing in New Berlin, states that he has owned the property for 15 years. It 
has been available for sale for a “very long time”. He states that the muffler shop has been aware of this situation for 
closer to ten years. Brugger asks if there is anyone renting any storage space in the building right now. Not that Sutherland 
is aware of. Hartz asked if the only change to the general development plan is to put a circle drive in front of the building. 
Hartz also asked if the sign that was passed around (dimensions mentioned in the packet) was part of the approval tonight. 
It is. The little roof over the sign is to facilitate down lights for the sign without polluting the neighborhood. Brugger 
stated that if the Plan Commission goes forward with approval, that the sign be approved with an electronic message 
center and not have to come forward for another Conditional Use. Hartz asked if the existing easement around the Travel 
building and the main building (proposed for the church) is still being maintained. It is. The Church is proposing to put a 
walkway between the Travel building and the church instead of a driveway as a former applicant had asked for. There is 
still an area from Williams street to the travel center to allow for cars to travel in and out. He believes that it has to be 28’ 
wide. Hartz asked what will happen to the part of the building that will not be worked upon at this time. Sutherland stated 
they are not sure, but it could be a potential boat storage facility. Flower asks for clarification of the access to the Travel 
building. Discussion followed. Rick Hammer, member of the church, approached the podium to clarify some parking 
issues. Sutherland went over some of the kinds of uses that they considering in correlation with the potential parking 
increase. Bruce Bruns pastor at Anchor Covenant Church approached the podium to explain that on a good day, they have 
80 people. The parking lot is something they are going to want to grow into.  He also comments that he wants to cooperate 
with the neighbors. The Travel building is for sale and after the first newspaper story came out, they were approached by 
the owner of the Travel building to buy the building. The church said they would have to wait and see and potentially 
purchase the large building first and see what happens with that. Since the owners of the travel building do not know who 
they are going to be dealing with as an owner/renter, it’s hard for the church to know how to work with that area. Brugger 
explains that the City Planner has sent correspondence to suggest a provision in development in an existing area that 
would have some issues with current requirements (i.e. parking requirements). Alderman Hartz read the suggestion. 
Brugger continued to explain that in order for this building to develop into anything, there is going to have to be some 
flexibility in parking and the Commission is going to have to find a way to consider that. Flower asked for clarification on 
the movement of the power poles that are on the property. Sutherland stated that they have already contacted the power 
company on that movement of the poles and they will be moved.  
Alderman Ellyn Kehoe, 222 Warren Street, approached the podium and asks if they building needs to be sprinkler-ed. 
Brugger stated it already is sprinkler-ed. Kehoe also suggests some other local businesses that she believes should be 
asked to utilize their parking lots.  
Sutherland stated that he has asked other businesses but because he is not the owner of the building, they said they would 
get back to him. Once they are owners, they can indemnify the owners of the parking lot. Hill/Olson to close the public 
hearing. Motion carried. Discussion followed on traffic and easements on the Travel business parcel. Hill/Poetzinger 
motion to approve the Precise Implementation Plan filed by Anchor Covenant Church, PO Box 351, Lake Geneva, 
WI 53147, to allow for an Indoor Institutional Use (Church) at 630 Williams Street Tax Key Numbers ZA1776 
00001, ZA1776 00002, ZA1776 00003 and ZA1776 00004 as submitted (limited to the current floor plan as 
depicted), the applicants come forward for any other additional uses other than the current storage use and 
including all staff recommendations as well as  the electronic message center of the sign will not need to come 
forward for an addition Conditional Use. Flower asks if they would be coming forward with additional uses for more 
Precise Implementation plans. Brugger explains how it would come forward each time a new use would commence. The 
parking could be revisited each time they come forward. Brugger would like to clarify the time frame for the parking lot 
completion as a condition as well as other exterior improvements. Hill stated she did not see a need to put that time frame 
in the motion for approval, that they have a very ambitious project ahead of them and it seems that they want to get going 
as soon as possible. Discussion followed. Roll call vote: Hill: Aye, Olson: Aye, Flower: Aye, Poetzinger: Aye, Hartz: 
Aye. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 



 
Discussion on a Concept Plan for Delaney Street Mercantile 905 W. Main Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
for a possible Planned Development. Jeff and Beverly Leonard, 1504 Dodge Street and Owners of Delaney 
Street Mercantile approached the podium and explained their project. They would like to complete the 
beautification of the property by adding this conservatory. They would like to achieve this by making a zoning 
change to Planned Development. Flower asks where the dumpster will be moved to. It will be put behind the 
conservatory. Brugger wants to know what will be in the new area. Leonard explains they will put statues in 
there. Leonard also asks to have outdoor display like many of his neighbors already have because of their 
zoning and will be able to with the new zoning. Discussion followed on the neighboring land uses. Brugger asks 
if they would consider a conditional use for the temporary outdoor display versus thru the planned development. 
Leonard said they could consider it in addition to the conservatory. Hill asks how many other properties to the 
West are in the Neighborhood Office zoning district. There are two more properties (in addition to Delaney 
Street store) to the West. Brugger explains that the packets will probably not change much since he did such a 
complete job on this packet. Flower asks how close to the property line will this addition is. Brugger states that 
is why they are asking for a Planned Development. Otherwise they would have to adhere to a 25’ rear yard 
setback and a minimum 6’ side yard in that district. That is why he is asking for flexibility for setbacks. He is 
also asking for flexibility on parking as he would be required to add a stall with the increase in square footage 
with the addition. It would be detrimental for him to have to add another space due to his location and lack of 
onsite parking available. Hill showed positive feedback. She wants to know what the neighbors think about the 
transition to PD. Poetzinger showed positive feedback as well. Olson also showed positive feedback and favors 
the statues to be moved inside. Flower showed positive feedback, but would like to see the distances to the lot 
line and more dumpster information. Hartz says that the addition fits in with the Comprehensive Plan with the 
mixed use and provides a good transition to the residential area. He also has positive feedback. 
 
Discussion on outdoor entertainment for “Summer Stock” theater within the 300 feet of residential 
dwellings. Bethany Souza and Andrew Fritz, 327 Wrigley Drive approached the podium to discuss the idea of 
having outdoor entertainment within 300 feet of residential dwellings. Ms. Souza read a description of Summer 
Stock Theater written in a recent Wisconsin publication. They are looking to bring theatre back to Lake Geneva. 
They are soon to be acquiring the Golden Oaks Mansion and are looking to have this summer stock under a tent 
in the parking area of the property at 421 Baker Street. Brugger explains that this project came up and then the 
patio at 835 Wrigley Street, both would have to be 300 feet (approximately 1 city block) aware from residential 
lots. Brugger has spoken with the City Planner to discuss how other cities have re-defined their commercial 
outdoor entertainment and separated the larger more activity based uses out. This would be more for the sedate 
outdoor uses like dining and other assembly like uses. The current restrictions force them to be at least 300 feet 
away from residential properties and with the proposed revision, they would not have to adhere to that. Slavney 
also thought that the amount of buffering could be lowered.  If you are across the street (from residential) there 
would be enough distance separation (i.e. obstructing lake views from patios). Brugger explains that the 
Commission would need to amend the ordinance to remove the restriction of being 300 feet away from 
residential properties. A Conditional Use would still be needed and potential nuisances could be addressed at 
that time. Hill reiterates that the ordinance be changed and then a Conditional Use would still need to be applied 
for on a case by case basis. Hill supports the idea but stresses making sure that all the details are taken care of. 
Poetzinger also supports this idea and likes the idea of theater for kids, adults and guests of the city. Olson 
supports the idea but expresses the concern for the parking. Souza expects that many guests will walk from the 
Theater area to the hundreds of hotel room’s downtown. The parking requirements will be addressed. The 
running of the Golden Oaks will continue as it has been except many renting only about three rooms versus the 
six rooms that have been rented (and changing the name of the mansion). Flower likes the idea of live theater in 
this community and fully supports the idea. The only issue Flower foresees is a noise issue. Souza states that 
nothing will be occurring after 9:00pm. Flower asks if the food and beverage would be served outdoors. 
Brugger states that the serving would be part of the Conditional Use. Hartz states that there is Music in the Park 
on Thursday nights in the summer. He feels that this theater would compliment the event and hopes that they 
can have a very detailed plan when it comes forward. Hartz is not worried about the 300 feet versus the 75 feet. 
He thinks the neighbors would like to be a part of everything. Attorney Draper feels that this process can be 



initiated by the Plan Commission to begin the amendment process. Flower/ Olson motions to direct staff to 
begin the amendment process and set a public hearing for the March meeting. Motion carried. 
 
 
 
Downtown Design Review. 
727 Geneva Street. Bread Loaf Book Store. They would like to move their sign from the former location on 
Wrigley to the current location on Geneva Street. Hill/ Olson motion to approve the sign as presented. Motion 
carried. 
 
101 Broad Street. Braden Dental Center. They would like to add an awning to Broad Street and Wrigley Street 
2nd floor awnings. They are permitted the awnings but not the signage according to the ordinance. 
Flower/Poetzinger motion to approve the green awnings as presented. Motion carried.  
 
755 Main Street. Refined Rustic. They would like to have an awning with signage. It will be a tan awning with 
black thin stripes. Hill/ Olson motion to approve the awning with signage as presented. Motion carried. 
 
812 Geneva Street. Former Wild Birds Unlimited building. The stucco will be the pure earth, trim will be divine 
wine and the columns and window/door framing will be pure bliss. Signage will come at a later date. Flower/ 
Hill motion to approve as presented. Motion carried.   
 
521 Broad Street. Sweet House of Madness. They would like to change out the awning for an orange color and 
also include metal brackets as presented. Flower asked if anyone wanted to motion. Olson/Poetzinger motion to 
approve as presented. Motion carried with 1 abstention (Hartz).   
 
Poetzinger/Hill motion to adjourn at 9:14 pm. Motion carried.  
 
/s/ Jennifer Special, Building/Zoning Administrative Assistant  
 
 These minutes are not official until approved at the next Planning Commission meeting. 
 
 
 
  
 
 



Board of Park Commissioners 
 

                  Doug Skates - President 
  Alderman Al Kupsik  Lynn Hassler  Barb Hartigan 
  Rick Steinberg   Peggy Schneider Dave Quickel 
John Swanson   Mayor Jim Connors 

 

Director of Public Works Daniel S. Winkler, P.E., Secretary 
Street Superintendent Ron Carstensen 

 

City of Lake Geneva          626 Geneva Street          Lake Geneva, WI 53147-1914 
www.cityoflakegeneva.com          Phone: (262) 248-3673 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 1, 2012 MEETING 
 
Call to Order: 
    The Board of Park Commissioners meeting was called to order by President Doug Skates at 6:30 pm. 
 
Roll Call: 
    Present:  Skates, Swanson, Quickel, Hartigan, Steinberg, Schneider. 
    Absent:  Hassler, Kupsik, Connors, Winkler 
    Public Present:  Mr. Ed Yaeger, Mr. Taylor Danz (Alzheimers Walk), Ryan (Skate Park) 
 
Approval of Minutes: 
    It was moved by Barb Hartigan to approve the January 4, 2012 meeting minutes, seconded by John Swanson.  
Motion passed 6-0. 
 
Public  Input: 
    Mr. Yaeger requested us to view the DVD about the Railroad so a discussion about the site can be discussed at 
the March meeting.  DVDs were distributed to available members. 
 
Park Permits: 
    Andy Kerwin requested Library Park, September 15, 2012, 7:00am to 1:00pm for Walk to End Alzheimers 
(formerly Memory Walk).  Approximately 800 people; Have paid application fee; Requesting to have Park Fee 
waived.  This walk raises a lot of money which 60% of the monies stay in Walworth County.  Barb motioned to 
approve, Dave seconded.  Motion passed 6-0. 
 
    Bridget Buckley, Aurora IL, requested Flat Iron Park, June 16, 2012, 11:00am to 5:00pm for wedding and use of 
Gazebo.  Approximately 25 people; All fees paid.  Doug motioned to approve, Barb seconded.  Motion passed 6-0. 
 
    Tracy Buschbom, Charleston, IL, requested Flat Iron Park, July 22, 2012, 9:30am to 12:00pm for use of Gazebo.  
Approximately 20 people.  Barb motioned to approve, John seconded.  Motion passed 6-0. 
 
Park Assignments: 
     
     General:  Doug reminded everyone to check parks for vandalism.  John reported that the area behind the YMCA 
needed to be cleaned up. 
 
    Home Depot Park:  Rick spoke with manager at Home Depot about signage.  Manager stated he had been busy 
due to end of the fiscal year.  Rick will contact him again in a couple of weeks and report back.  Discussed land 
usage: parking, dog park feasibility.    Doug reminded us to begin thinking about organizing our parks in regards to 
signage, crosswalks, wheelchair or stroller accessibility.  This can be discussed at March and April meetings. 



 
    Skate Park:  Mike should be sending requested changes on the plans to Lake Geneva by end of the week 
(garbage cans, water fountain, and benches), and then the bidding can begin.  Discussion about approval of this by 
city council followed.  Doug reported that the city council has approved the TIF projects.  Ryan ? reported that the 
old skate park had a memorial sign on the chain link fence and it is gone.  Discussed about need to determine whose 
name was on the sign and then we can discuss what needs to be done next, i.e.: notifying family?  Barb also 
reported that Ann Brunk would like to donate a Bronze Skater Sculpture to be placed at the Skate Park.  Will find 
out how to handle donations. 
 
Adjourn: 
    It was moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:17pm by Barb, and seconded by Rick.  Motion passed 6-0, and meeting 
was adjourned. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Peggy Schneider 
 



 
Lake Geneva Public Library Board of Trustees Meetings 

918 West Main Street     Lake Geneva, Wisconsin   53147   (262) 
249-5299 

 
Finance Committee 

Thursday, February 9, 2012 at 7:00 a.m.    (Director’s Office) 
Present:  Krause, Kundert, Lafrenz, Oppenlander   Also present: 
Peterson 
 
After reviewing outstanding bills, Kundert approved a 
recommendation to the Library Board to approve $37,048.25 in 
General Funds and $108.03 in Donated Funds. 

 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Thursday, February 9, 2012 at 8:00 a.m.  
 

Call to order  
Lafrenz called the meeting to order at 8: 05 a.m. 
 
Roll call 
Members present:  Brookes, Jones, Kundert, Lafrenz, Oppenlander   
Also present:  Peterson and Benson 
 
Adoption/Amendment of agenda 
Lafrenz asked for a motion to accept the proposed agenda.  
Brookes made a motion to accept the agenda.  Oppenlander 
seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  Lafrenz asked for a 
motion to add “2011 Annual Report” on the agenda under 
President’s Report.  Brookes made a motion to amend the agenda as 
proposed.  Kundert seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Disposition of minutes of previous regular meeting and any 
intervening         
         special meeting(s) 
Lafrenz asked for a motion to approve the minutes of the January 
12, 2012 meeting.  Oppenlander made a motion to approve the 
minutes of the January 12, 2012 meeting.  Brookes seconded.  
Motion carried unanimously.   
 
President’s Report  
Lafrenz reported that the Board had responded favorably to the 
request at last month’s meeting to change the April 12, 2012 
meeting to April 5, 2012.  Lafrenz asked for a motion to approve 
that change of dates.  Oppenlander made a motion to approve the 
April meeting schedule change.  Brookes seconded.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Lafrenz asked the Board to consider a motion to authorize him to 
sign the Library’s 2011 Annual Report to be submitted to the 
Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction by March 1st.  



Oppenlander made a motion to authorize Lafrenz as proposed.  
Brookes seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Building & Grounds 
Lafrenz reported that the Finance Committee reviewed an air 
conditioning and heating labor only maintenance renewal contract 
from Vorpagel.  Discussion followed.  Oppenlander made a motion 
that Vorpagel be advised that the Library will not renew the 
contract this year, but will call them for service on an as 
needed basis.  Kundert seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.    
 
Finance/Endowment 
Kundert reviewed monthly expenditures and made a motion to 
approve $37,048.25 in General Funds and $108.03 in Donated Funds.  
Oppenlander seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Kundert reported on the status of open invoices charged against 
the 2011 budget.  Kundert made a motion to approve 2011 open 
invoices in the amount of $3,219.36.  Brookes seconded.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Kundert reported that the Finance Committee had considered 
identifying a separate budget code for kitchen supplies.  
However, after reviewing the 2011 expenditures in that category, 
the Finance Committee advised that it was not necessary. 
 
Peterson reported that she requested a schedule of impact fees 
required to be spent each year from the City Comptroller.  This 
report will be ready for Board review at the March meeting. 
 
Director’s Report 
Peterson reported on recent service statistics including an 
all-time record in January 2012 with 16,921 check-outs. 
 
Peterson reported on the success of debt collection through 
Unique Management. 
 
Peterson reported on the status of the sound system project 
initiated by the Friends. 
 
Benson reported on the well-attended and popular barn 
program premiering Tom Laughlin’s most recent dvd.  Benson 
also reported on upcoming youth and adult programming. 
 
Adjournment 
Kundert made a motion to adjourn at 9:00 a.m.  Brookes seconded.  
Motion carried unanimously.   
 
 
 



Next meeting:  Thursday, March 8, 2012 at 8:00 a.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,   
 
 
Diane Jones 
Secreatary 



Lake Geneva Historic Preservation 
Commission Meeting 

February 9, 2012 6:30 p.m. Lake Geneva City Hall. 

The meeting was called to order by President Ken Etten at 6:30 p.m. at Lake Geneva City Hall. 

Members present: Dee Bark Fiske, Ken Etten, Ed Yaeger, Mary Tanner, and Patrick Quinn. 

Members absent: Ellyn Kehoe & Jackie Getzen 

Minutes are approved as presented: Motion by Ed Yaeger, seconded by Dee Fiske 

Comments from the Public: Bethany and Andrew from the Baker House announced that 

two historic paintings of the Maxwells' will be on loan at the Baker House. They are planning on a 

walking tour throughout the city of Lake Geneva for this summer and may include the cemetery and the 

museum. 

Report from Geneva Lake Museum and Maple Park Homeowners' 
Association: The museum will reopen for the weekends starting March 2' 2012. There will be a 

Grand Reopening on May 18, 2012 with a cocktail party, wine and beer, and a silent auction on Friday 

night and numerous activities on Saturday with free admission for those who bring food for the needy. 

Update on the proposed new Railroad Depot sign and continuing the 
proposed "Railroad Heritage Trail" through Lake Geneva: The sign location has 

been approved near Dunn Lumber on Broad Street. The sign will be installed as soon as the ground 

thaws. An additional sign is being planned near Simple restaurant so that outside diners will be able to 

read about the location of the railroad at that site. 

Report on the status of the Geneva Theatre Building at 244 Broad Street 
The website has been established at www.friendsofgenevatheater.org. Patrick Quinn has written a 
letter to Mayor Connors requesting TIF funds be used for the city purchase of the building. Sherry 
Carlson is the new treasurer. 

Discussion regarding potential projects for 2012 such as preparation of 
a Historic Lake Geneva Walking Tour brochure, future "Tales of Lake 
Geneva" educational presentations and update re: Rick Bernstein of the 
Wisconsin Historical Society for the proposed Cemetery Restoration 
program at Pioneer Cemetery and Horticultural Hall on Friday May 18th 



Maple Park Homeowners are trying to keep the cemetery open to the public and will be doing 

additional plantings in the Spring. 

Discussion of additional promotional projects for the Historic 
Preservation Commission 
Carol Cartwright will be contacted to see if she can assist with Grant Applications. 

Review of the Plaque Program and status of the recent applications. 
Review of materials from the Wisconsin Historical Society and the 
National Trust for Historic Preservation. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 

Dee Ba rk Fiske 



2.15.12 Parking Commission 
 

PARKING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY,  FEBRUARY 15, 2012 – 6:00PM 
CITY HALL BUILDING, CONFERENCE ROOM 2A 

 
 Meeting called to order at 6:00pm 
 
Roll Call.  Present: Alderman Marsala, Swangstu, Fleming, Smith, and Hennerley.  Also present: 
Aldermen O’Neill and Mott, Mayor Connors, Administrator Jordan. 
 
Fleming/Swangstu motion to approve minutes of January 10, 2012 meeting. Unanimously 
carried. 
 
Comments from the public. 
Alderman O’Neill commented on the location of the kiosks and the safety of the slabs.  
 
Length of meter time. 
Administrator Jordan explained that most of the meters are 4-hour; they had talked at the last 
meeting of making them 5-hour after considering how long it would take most people to do what 
they want to do.  Discussion followed on the pros and cons of longer hours, abuses of refeeding 
the meters, having a parking area for employees, limiting areas where residents with stickers can 
park, cost of parking, changing senior citizens’ parking to two hours, possibility of pay-by-phone 
and other options. 
    
Smith/Marsala motion to change 4-hour meters to 5-hour, 30-minute meters to  
25-minute and 12-minute meters to 15-minute.  Unanimously carried.     
 
Handicapped stalls on street, not lots 
Administrator Jordan said the state statutes require a certain amount of handicapped stalls in lots 
but not on streets.  He suggested all handicapped parking spaces be in the lots with the retaining 
of current ones on the street that are next to an alley which gives those with wheel chairs more 
room.  Those with handicapped placards can park free at any stall.  
 
Fleming/Marsala motion to instruct Kerri to draw up a map of all handicapped spaces in the lots 
and on the street, and also on that map to mark off 50% of the street spaces we would like to 
eliminate, for the Commission to review.  Unanimously carried. 
 
Free parking for residents – general discussion of limiting free, two-hour parking to certain 
areas 
After discussion, the consensus was that the Commission does not want to get rid of the free two-
hour parking.   



2.15.12 Parking Commission 
 

Flemming/Swangstu motion to create one 2-hour sticker type valid for two years for residents, 
seniors and Walworth County purchasers.  Unanimously carried. 
 
General discussion of parking ramp 
Mr. Fleming explained that if we are considering a parking ramp, it will need to be funded with 
the TIF and money would need to be set aside now before it runs out.   
Discussion followed including what would be required to go ahead with this, what is budgeted, 
TIF use, support of the current Council, possible needs in the future, and the effect of removing 
parking spaces.  Chairman Smith suggested that they gather more information in order to present 
a plan that is approved by the Parking Commission and BID.    
 
Fleming/Swangstu motion to continue this to the March meeting.  Unanimously carried. 
 
Removing/adjusting parking spaces at Main and Broad and Main and Cook to improve 
traffic flow 
After discussion, it was agreed it would be better to make the spaces that are causing traffic 
congestion at these locations into compact car spaces rather than removing them. 
Smith/Fleming motion to change two spaces at each of these intersections to compact car 
parking.  Unanimously carried.  Mayor Connors suggested a joint meeting with the Public Works 
Committee to discuss lane markings and other traffic flow issues.  
 
Review of the Winterfest shuttle bus 
The shuttle bus worked well and the drivers were courteous.  The new signs and promotion by 
the Chamber of Commerce were very helpful.  
 
Discussion of whether to hold the February 21 meeting and scheduling March meeting and 
beyond 
It was decided to cancel the February 21 meeting and coordinate a joint meeting with the Public 
Works Committee in March.  Their regular meetings will be held the third Tuesday of every 
month.  The next meeting will be March 20, 2012.  Mayor Connors asked that adding more 
compact car spaces on lower Center be on the next Parking Commission meeting agenda.  The 
ordinance needs to be changed so it would be best if they could make all the changes in one 
ordinance. 
 
Fleming/Swangstu motion to adjourn at 9:00pm.  Unanimously carried.  
 
Transcribed from audio tape. 
/s/Artis Roenspies, Deputy Clerk 
 

  



 
GENEVALAKE AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MINUTES 

 
DATE:          Thursday, February 9, 2012 
TIME:           7:35 a.m. 
PLACE:        HarborShores 
PRESENT:   John Stensland, George Hennerley, Brett Sundstrom, Tammie Carstensen,  
 Kevin Fleming,  Jesse Jacobs, Todd Krause, Tom Hartz, Karin Bennett, 
                       Bill Gage, Michael Jackson,  Grace Eckland, Helen Johnson, Ardith  
Berkanovic 
 
      Meeting called to order by Chairman Brett Sundstrom at 7:32 a.m. 
Minutes: January 12, 2012 minutes approved on a motion by Tom Hartz, seconded 
      Kevin Fleming. Carried. 
      Financial Statements, Bills submitted for payment: January 12, 2012 financials 
approved on a motion by Jesse Jacobs, seconded Michael Jackson.Carried. 
New Members: Two new members approved on a motion by Kevin Fleming, 
seconded Bill Gage. Carried.New members are:  Prudential Financial and Newport 
Payroll. 
    - Committee formed (Tammy Carstensen, JohnStensland, George Hennerley) regarding 
incentives for  acquiring new members. Report to be presented at March Board Mtg.  

- Chamber to provide results of new members contacted for the month. 
Chamber Member Survey: Executive Committee (John Stensland) gave report 
            - Review:  Cost for survey was $700 through Survey Monkey.   
            - Results:  Discounts, Networking, Advertising, Web Exposure are important Chamber 
benefits. 
.      - Encouraged Board members be present at Chamber functions (ribbon cutting/ 
open houses/ social night activities. 
       -Tom Hartz and George Hennerley will contact Badger High School regarding 
marketing assistance for Chamber office (templates for newsletters, etc.)  Report 
update at March meeting. Also recommended Chamber participate in Career Day 
at Badger.   
             -Deca Program:  Karin Bennett to forward Deca information to Board members. 
               Judges are needed for the 2012 program. 
            -  Constant Contact:  George Hennerley will follow-up regarding software for 
Chamber to track e-mails. 
         Member Survey Summary: 

1)  Board attendance at Chamber functions very important 
2)  Badger High School involvement 
3)  Follow-up on dropped members. 

Non-renewalMembership: Discussionfollowed regarding Membership Investment  
     Schedule/base structure.  Chamber Link for Membership Investment amounts will be sent 
toBoard members for review. Board members to report back of any contacts made to 
non-renewed members. 



 
 
Retail Division Report: Kevin Fleming. February 8, 2012.  Name changed to Chamber 
Member Meeting.29 attended.  Open discussion format addressing ‘What is Your 
Vision for Lake Geneva area as a Business owner?” Great participation and positive 
comments.  Minutes can be read on the Chamber Website.  
 
“To Do List” Follow-up: 

1) Tom Hartz to provide Chamber with contact business name of new creperi store 
opening 

2)  Badger High School follow-up re. marketing assistance 
3)  Constant Contact for e-mail tracking update 
4)  Report on new member contact results for the month by Ardith/Helen. 
5)  Incentives for referral of new member contacts 
6)  Chamber Member Investment Schedule Chamber Link to be sent. 
7)  Chamber Facebook 
8)  Listing of tourism links on CVB and Chamber site. 

 
Meeting adjourned on a motion by Tom Hartz, seconded Kevin Fleming at 8:55 a.m.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



GENEVA LAKE ENVIRONMENTAL AGENCY 
Director’s Report 
Jan – Feb 2012 

 
-I have reviewing the December 2nd drafts of Fontana’s Chapter 17 and 18 of their municipal 
codes.  These chapters address land division and zoning.  Copies of my comments were sent to 
all board members for review. I anticipate sending the comments to the Village as a GLEA 
position before the board meeting unless I hear otherwise.  My major comments are on a need to 
strengthen the shoreland protection and construction site erosion control sections.  I also offered 
assistance in their wellhead protection section using the groundwater model that was calibrated 
for Geneva Lake area and used by WGNHS.  We also offered to assist them in identification of 
navigable streams covered under the appropriate section of Chapter 18.  
-Based upon last month’s discussion I have prepared an amended budget.  In addition to making 
the changes discussed I would also like the board to consider an increase in the 
conference/membership line item of $500.  There are two major conferences being held very 
close by that I would like to attend yet were not budgeted for in our 2012 budget. The Wisconsin 
Wetlands Association is holding their State Conference in Lake Geneva, Feb 22 and 23.  I would 
like to attend the Wed, Feb 22 day at a cost of $135.  The North American Lake Management 
Society (NALMS) will be holding their international Symposium in Madison the first week of 
November.  Registration cost for this four day conference will be around $390.   
- I was interviewed for an article in one of the local real estate publications. The interview was 
on GLEA, the lake and my 37 years here.  
 -The Environmental Education Foundation (EEF) has again budgeted $ for scholarships to the 
Natural Resource Careers Workshop this summer.  This scholarship program is coordinated by 
the GLEA and funded by the EEF. We offer one scholarship to at least one high school junior or 
senior from each of the area high schools who is interested in the natural sciences.   
-As of Feb. 9th Geneva Lake has not totally frozen this year.  We have seven students who picked 
“no ice” in our Ice-On Contest.  That may be a winner this year.  
-I have received a request to assist with a high school AP biology class from Woodstock on their 
field trip to Geneva Lake.  It is scheduled for April 30th.   
-We have received several intern applications for 2012.  There are some good candidates.  We 
will close applications on March 19th.  KNC has asked if we could forward any applicants who 
might be better qualified for their work then ours.    
-We have been contacted by an individual who represents a “team” from a local company that 
has expressed some interest in taking over the car rally.  The team has agreed to explore the 
possibility and will be meeting with me to discuss the prospect. 
--White River sampling, lake level recording, and atmospheric wet deposition sampling is 
continuing as scheduled.   
-I attended the Wisconsin On-site Wastewater and Recycling Association’s state conference last 
week.  This is one of the best conferences to keeping abreast of what is happening in Wisconsin 
regarding septic systems and decentralized sanitary waste management.  
-I am working on Geneva Waters, and Summary Information Sheet # 8 Groundwater.   
 
twp  


	Agenda
	2/6/12 Minutes

	Assembly Bill 563 letter
	Status of AB563
	AB563 Text

	Senate Bill 276 letters
	Status of SB276
	SB276

	Paper Council Packets
	Police & Fire Commission Agenda
	Plan Commission Minutes
	Park Board Minutes
	Library Board Minutes
	Historic Preservation Minutes
	Parking Commission Minutes
	Chamber of Commerce Minutes
	Geneva Lake Environmental Agency Report

